
) . 

I. 
1-

ever, Belgium had been able to place a consid
erable quantity at th~ disposal of other coun
tries· .in the form of credits, iron and steel 
products, machinery and _ equipment. 

The part which the Intern,ational Bank for Re
construction and Development could play in the 
.development of the .under-develope9 countries 
had often been emphasized. The Belgian Govern-_ 
ment had just approved the investment · in Bel
gium of a suin of 10 million dollars from the 
B.ank loan. It was significant that Belgium had 
been one of the-countries of Europe from which 
a contribution, however modest, had been re
. quested. That could be interpreted as proof that 
Belgium wished to shi).re, as far as its resources 
allowed,. in collective undertakings for economic 
development. 

The Council was faced with an extensive long
term project and, owing to the great variety of 
its ·aspects, there was a dange'r for the Council 
to lose its way. But the time had come to leave 

_ generalities aside and look for practical solu
. tions. · That was the meaning of the Secretary

General's . note (E/ 1119) . . The competent organs 
of the United Nations had in fact already ,turned 
to a particular aspect of the problem, namely, 

:-. technical assistance to under-developed court- . 
tries. The General' Assembly had already adopted 
a · resolution on that subject and the United 
States draft resolution dealt with the same aspect 

- of the matter:. 

rriettre urie part 'importante a . la disposition 
· d'autres pays sous forme de c'redits, de produits 
metallurgiques, d'outillage ou d'equipement. 

On a-souvent insiste sur le role que·peut jouer 
Ia Banque internationale pour ·ra reconstruction 
et le developpement dans Ia mise· e!l valeur des · 
pays insuffisammertt developpes. Le Gouverne
ment beige vient d'approuver le placement en 
Belgique d'une tranche de 10 millions de dollars 
de l'emprunt de Ia Banque. II est significatif que 
Ia Belgique soit un: des pays de !'Europe auquel 
une contribution, meme modeste, ait ete demandee . 
On petit y voir Ia preuve du fait que Ia Belgique . 
desire participer, dans Ia mesure de ses ressources, 
aux entreprises collectives tendant au developpe
ment economique. 

· -Le'" Cons-eii"S;-tr~dev";i~t-;ne-a;;:;;-;e~de 
longue haleine et de grande ampleur. La multi
plicite de ses aspects fait courir au Conseil le, 
risque de s'y perdre. Cependant, le moment est 
venu de sortir des generalites et d'envisager des 
solutions concretes. C'est le sens de Ia note du 
Secretaire general (E/1119). En fait, !'attention 
des organes competents de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies s'est deja concentree sur un aspect 
particulier du probleme, ·a sa voir !'assistance tech
nique aux pays insuffi~amment developpes. 
L'Assemblee generale a deja adopte une resolu
tion ace sujet et le projet de resolution des Etats
Unis envisage le meme aspect du prob1eme. 

That draft resolution comprised three main Ce pro jet de resolution comprend trois parties · 
· points: preparation of a comprehensiv_e plan for essentielles : !'elaboration d'un projet complet de 

an expanded co7operative programme of tech- programme pour !'extension de Ia collaboration 
nical assistance; the methods for financing such en matiere d'assistance technique, les methodes 
a programme; and provisions in regard to ways de financement de ce programme et les moyens 
of co-ordinating the planning and execution of d'assurer Ia coordination de !'elaboration et de 

· the programme~ · · l'execution.du programme. 

The Belgian delegation considered that the La delegation . de Ia Belgique estime que ce 
prop.osal ·was fnade in a constructive and prac- . proj et est conc;u _dans un esprit constructif et 
tical spirit and intended to support it. pratique, et elle lui donnera son appui. 

. The ·meeting rose at 1 p.rri. 

TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY-FOURTH 
MEETING · 

H eld at Lake Success, New York, 
on Monday, 28 February 1949, at 3.30 p.m. 

·President: Mr. V. V. SKOROBOGATY 
(Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic), 

later Mr. James THORN (New Zealand). 

- 59. Continuation of the discussion on 
the survey of forced labour· ·and 
measures for its abolition (E/596, 
E/1150/Rev.1, E/1164 and . E/ 
1173) 

Tl)e AcTING PRESIDENT announced that the 
President had been delayed by a heavy snowfaJI. 
F urthermore, the Secretariat had informed him 
t hat the Council should complete its work as 
early as possible· because of prevailing weather: 
conditions. 

. . 

At the suggestion of the United Kingdom 
representative; he prop'osed that the Council 
should hear a statement by 'the representative of 
the l!SSR _and then adjourn. - · 

Mr. T$ARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the discussion on the ques-

La seance esi: levee a 13 heures. 

DEUX-CENT-CINQUANTE-QUATRIEME 
· SEANCE 

T enue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le lundi 28 fevrier 1949, a 15 h. 30. 

President: M. V. V. SKoRonoGATY (Republique 
socialiste sovietique de Bielorussie), . 

·puis M. James THORN (Nouvelk-Zelande). 

59. Suite de Ia discussion sur l'enquete 
sur le travail force et I' etude des 
mesures tendant a l'aholir·. (E/596, 
E/1J50/Rev.l, E/1164et E/1173). 

Le PRESIDENT PAR INTERIM annonce que le 
President a ete retarde par Ia neige. Par ailleurs, 
le Secretariat a fait savoir que le Conseil devrait 
lever sa seance le plus tot ·possible en raison du 
mauvais temps. 

. Sur Ia suggestion du representant du Royaume
Uni, le President par interim propose que le 
Conseil entende une declaration du r epresentant 
de .l'URSS et leve ensuite Ia seance . . 

M. TsARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare que le debat sur Ia 



tion of forced labour. had" revealed a divergence 
of opinions on whether labour was free or forced 
·in those countries where all the means of pro
duction were privately owned,· where workers 
and _employees, therefore, were always at the 
inercy of their employers and where the threat 
of unemployment resulted in com~tant uncer
tainty regarding the future, where, further, there 
was no comprehensive social security system and 
labour was not free. 

In view of the paramount importance of the 
question of freedom of labour-a question whic~ 
had not yet been fully examined by the Councrl 
-the USSR delegation wished to submit the 
following draft resolution (E/1194) : 

"The Economic and Social Council 
"Recognizes 'the gr~at importance of the ques

tion of 'forced. labour' tmder discussion by the 
Council and considers the material so far sub
mitted by the originators of this question to be 
wholly inadequate, in many respects lacking in 
objectivity and truth, and grossly libellous and 
defamatory of the Union of_ Soviet Socialist 
Republics; 

"JV otes, on the one hand, that the discussion 
on this question has revealed a divergence · of 
views on whether labour is free or forced in 
those countries where there is ownership _of the 
land by rich landowners, where there is private 
capitalist ownership of factories, plants, mines, 
banks, railways and all other means of produc
tion, and where the fruits of the labour of 
\vorkers· and employees are thereby appropriatecJ 
by the .. rich-the great capitalists, millionaires 
and multi-millionaires who control the capitalist 
monopolies while the ~orkers and employee's are 
in complete economic dependence upon them. _-

"In these- conditions workers and employees 
are compelled to work not for themselves but 
for others, are compelled to do work which is 
not of their choosing but which they have been 
obliged to accept in order to avoid starvation. 
Because of these circumstances, workers and 
employees in ·these countries are constantly 
threatened with losing their work and, in order 
to retain the means of existence, are frequently 
compelled- to agree to lower wages, bad working 
conditions and· cruel exploitation.· In preset;~t-day 
conditions, moreover, workers and employees are 
in many cases compelled to take into account the 
fact that their material standard of living is 
being reduced by increases in the price of prime 
necessaries, in taxation, rent, and the like. Par
ticular attention has been given to the fact that 
even at the present time, when there is no eco
nomic crisis, millions of unemployed and semi
employed persons in these countries are unable 
to work· and provide themselves and their faini
'lies with even the most essential means of exist
ence, while latterly the number of_ unemployed 
and semi-employed persons has been steadily 
increasing. Thrown · out of ·employment and 
brought face to face with death by starvation, 
unemployed workers and employees are com
pelled to seek any kind of work: this is being 
exploited by the capitalists in order to make still 
worse the position of workers and employees in 
employment 

que~tion du travail force a fait apparaitre une 
divergence d'opinions quant a savoir si le travail 
est libre ou force dans les pays ou tous les moyens 
de production sont entre les mains de proprietaires 
prives, ou les ouvriers et les employes sont tou
jours, de ce fait, a Ia merci de leurs employ~urs, 
ou Ia menace du chofnage est une cause de cramtes 
perpetuelles· pour l'avenir, ou il n'existe pas de 
systeme complet de securite sociale et ou, enfin, 
le travail n'est pas libre. 

· · Puisque Ia question de Ia liberte du travail est 
de toute premiere importance et n'a pas encore 
ete examinee a fond par le Conseil, Ia delegation 
de l'URSS desire presenter le projet de resolution· 
suivant (E/1194) : 

"Le Conseil economique et social 
"Reconnait -Ia grande importance de .Ia question 

qui fait actuellement !'objet des _deliberations du 
Conseil et qui est relative ace qu'on appelle "travail 
force", et considere que Ia documentation pre
sentee jusqu'ici par ceux qui l'ont soulevee est 
tout a fait insuffisante, qu'elle manque d'objectivite 
et d'exactitude a bien des egards, et qu'elle apporte. 
a l'egard de !'Union des. Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques des calomnies et diffamations gros-
sieres ;_ · 

"C onstate, d'une part, que le cours des deb~ts 
a fait apparaitre une divergence d'opinions quant 
a savoir si le travail est libre ou force dans les pays 
ou Ia terre est aux mains de riches proprietaires 
fanciers, ou les fabriques, les usines et les mines, 
les banques, les chemins de fer et tous autres 
moyens de production sont aux mains des capita
listes prives, et ou, de ce fait, les gens riches,
possesseurs du gros capital, millionnaires et mil
liardaires, maitres des monopoles capitalistes, 
usurpent le produit du travail des ouvriers et des 
employes, tandis que les ouvriers et les employes 
se trouvent en etat de complete dependance econo
mique a l'egard des possesseurs- du gros capital. 

"Dans' ces conditions, les · ouvriers et les em
ployes sont obliges de travailler non pas pour eux 
mais pour autrui, et sont forces d'exetuter non pas 
un travail de leur propre choix mais celui qu'ils 
sont contraints- d'accepter pour ne pas etre prives 
de pain. En raison des susdites circonstances, les 
ouvriers et les employes de ces pays sont constam
ment exposes aux risques de perdre leur travail 
et sont frequemment contraints, pour ne pas etre 
prives de moyens d'existence, d'accepter des 
'reductions de salaire et de mauvaises conditions 

-de travail et de subir une cruelle exploitation. En 
outre, dans les ·conditions actuelles, les ouvriers 
et les employes sont, dans bien des cas, obliges 
de tenir compte du fait qu~au point de vue materiel, 
leur niveau de vie s'abaisse par suite de Ia hausse 
des prix des objets de premiere necessite, de Ia 
hausse des impots, de Ia hausse des layers, etc. 
On a particulierement appele l'atte~tion sur le fait 
que, meme aujourd'hui, alors qu'il n'y a pas de 
crise economiqu~, ces pays comptent des millions 
de chomeurs complets ou partiels qui n'orit pas 
Ia possibilite dy travailler et de s'assurer, pour 
eux et leur famille, ne serait-ce que les ll)oyens 
strictement indispensables a leur subsistance ; il 
faut ajouter que les armees de chomeurs complets 
et partiels vont toujours s'accroissant ces temps 
derniers. Une fois ecartes du cycle de Ia pro
duction et mis en face du spectre de Ia faim, les 
ouvriers et les employes sont forces de chercher 
un travail que! qu'il soit, ce dont les capitalistes 
profitent pour faire empirer Ia situation des 
ouvriers et emplo>:es occupes. 

345 



"Attention has also been drawn to the ·fact 
that at the present stage of. the development of 
civilization it is inadmissible to retain slave and 

. semi-slave working conditions and a beggarly 
existtmce for workers in colonies and dependent 
ter"ritories, and also to the disfranchised condi: 
tion of the workers and the whole local popula
tion in those territories. 

"It has been pointed 6ut, moreover, that in 
many countries where private capitalist owner~ 
ship prevails, not to mention colonies and de
pendent territories, there is no system of State 
unemployment insurance, and no insurance and 

. material assistance against sickness, disablement 
and old age; the result is that many millions of 
workers are ever deprived of the nece-?sary 
means of existence and must constantly be 
haunted by the fear· of unemployment, poverty 
and hunger. 

"Notes, on the other hand, that the discussion 
has revealed a divergence of views on whether 
labour is free in a country such as the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics, . where the land has 
been taken away from the landowners and given 
to the peasants, where the factories, plants, 
mines, banks and railways belong to the people 
as a whole,· where the fruits of their labour 
belong to the workers themselves and are not 
appropriated by capitalist owners, as there are 
no. capitalists in the Soviet· Union and conse
quently no exploitation of man by man. 

"It. has been pointed out that' the Constitu
tion of the USSR guarantees the right to work 
for all workers without distinction of sex, race 
or language, and that this right is secured in 
practice by the socialist organization of the na
tional ewnomy, by the steady growth of the 
productive forces of society with the active par
ticipation of the workers, peasants and intelli-

. gentsia themselves, and also by the fact that in 
this country there are no economic crises and 
unemployment has long been eliminated, so that 
each year the material living conditions · of 
workers ~nd employees have steadily improved. 
The effect of this can · be seen in higher wages, 
in lower prices of consumer goods, in the de
velopment of a system of rest homes and sana
toria for workers, in the improvement of housing 
conditions, in the ever greater satisfaction of the 
growing cultural requrrements of workers and 
employees, and in the like. ,Workers and em
ployees in the USSR do not know what it is 
to be afraid of losing their work. They have no 
fear of want, nor are they uncertain of the mor
row. It has also been pointed out that in the · 
USSR there is State insurance against sickness, 
disablement and old age, guaranteeing free 
assistance to all workers, male and female, in 
such cases, and there are also regular holidays 
at State expense and free education for children. 
It has been pointed out, furthermore, that the 
people's democracies which have set foot on the 
path of socialist devel'opment are also success
fully .carrying out measures in the interests of 
the workers. 

"On a aussi attire !'attention sur le f?-it que, au 
stade actuel de developpement de la civilisation, 
il etait inadmissible de continuer a maintenir des 
conditions de travail servile ou demi-servile et des 
conditions de vie miserables pour les travailleurs 
des colonies et des territoires dependants, ainsi 
que sur la situation, soumise a l'arbitraire, des 
ouvriers et de toute Ia popufation locale dans ces 
territoires. 

"II a ete indique en outre que, dans de nombreux 
pays ou regne la propriete capitaliste privee, sans 
meme parler des colonies et des territoires non 
autonomes, il n'y a pas de systeme d'assurance par 
l'Etat des ouvriers et des ouvrieres contre le 
chomage, pas plus que d'assurance et d'aide ma
terielle en cas de maladie, d'invalidite et de 
vieillesse, si bien que des millions de travailleurs 
sont toujours prives des moyens d'existence in
dispensables et sont constamment en proie a Ia 
peur du chomage, de Ia. misere et de Ia faim. 

"Constate d'autre part qu'il est apparu au cours 
des debats une divergence d'opinions pour 
decider si le travail est libre dans un pays comme 
J'Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, 
ou Ia terre, retiree aux proprietaires foriciers, a 
ete transferee aux paysans; ou les fabriques, les 
usines, les miries, les banques, les chemins de fer 
sont Ia propriete de toute Ia nation ; ou le pro~ 
duit du travail des ouvriers n'appartient qu'a 
eux-memes, sans que puissent !'usurper des. poss~
.dants capitalistes, cela etant donne qu'il n'y. a pas 
de capitalistes dans !'Union sovietique ou, de ce 
fait, il n'existe pas d'exploitation de l'homme par 
l'homme. 

"On a indique en meme temps que Ia Constitu
tion de l'URSS garantit le droit au travail a tous 
les tra vailleurs sans distinction de sexe, de race 
.ou de langue, et que ce droit est . effectivement 
assure par une org;;misation socialiste de l'econo
,mie nationale, par ttn elan continu des forces 
productrices de la collectivite grace au concours 
actif des ouvriers, des paysans, des intellectuels 
et1x-memes, ainsi que par le fait que les crises 
'economiques y sont inexistantes et que le chomage · 
y ' a disparu depuis longtemps, ce qui a pour re
sultat une amelioration constante, d'annee en 
annee, des conditions materielles de la vie des -
ouvriers et des employes. On en voit les effets 
dans !'augmentation des salaires, dans l'abaisse
ment du prix des objets de grande consommation, 
dans le developpement du reseau de maisons de 
repos et de sanatoriums pour les travailleurs, dans 
!'amelioration des conditions de logement ainsi 
que dans un developpement toujours plus grand 
des services destines a satisfaire les besoins cul
turels des ouvriers et des employes, etc. Les 
ouvriers et les employes de l'URSS ignorent la 
peur de perdre leur emploi. Ils n'eprouvent pas 
la peur de la misere et de l'insecurite du lende
main. On a encore attire !'attention sur le fait 
que dans I'URSS existe !'assurance par l'Etat en 
cas de maladie, d'invalidite et de vieillesse, qui 
garantit !'assistance gratuite a tous les ouvriers 
et ouvrieres dans les cas ci-dessus, des conges 
periodiques payes et Ia gratuite de !'instruction 
pour les. enfants etant en meme temps accordee 
par l'Etat. II a ete indique en outre que les pays 
a democratic populaire qui se sont engages dans 
Ia voie de Ia construction socialiste reussissent 
aussi a mettre en ~uvre des mesures visant le bien 
des travailleurs. 

346 



"In view of tlie divergencies in the views ex
pressed on these ques.tions, 

"Acting in virttte of Articles 55 and 68 of the 
Charte~, 

"Resolves: 
"1. For the purpose of a comprehensive. and 

obj.ective investigation of the real working con
ditions of workers and employees in the coun
tries where private capitalist ownership prevails, 
and also in the USSR and in the people's democ
racies, to set up a comprehensive international 
commission consisting of representatives of the· 
manual and intellectual workers united in all 
existing trade unions, without distinction as to 
the political trend and religious convictions of 
their members, to include: representatives of the 
All-Union Central Council of Trade Unions of 
the USSR, the American Federation of Labor 
of the USA, the Congress of Industrial Organ
izations of the USA, the British Trade Union 
Council, the trade unions of France, Italy, China, 

· Germany, India and Japan, and other national 
trade union federations, on the basis of one 
representative· for every· million trade union 
members, to a total of 110-125 representatives. 
N a tiona! trade union federations with less than 
one million members, suitably grouped by coun
tries, shall appoint representatives . on the same 
basis. 

"The commtsston shall also include repre
sentatives of. existing international trade union . 

- federations-the World Federation of Trade 
Unions, the Confederation of Latin-American 
Workers, the International Federation of Chris
tian Trade- Unions, and others. 

"2. The commtsston shall pay particular 
attention to study of the situation of unemployed 
and semi-emplC)yed persons in all countries where 
unemployment has not been eliminated, in re

·spect of their real living conditions and legal 
status, 'including housing and other conditions 
of life, social insurance and medical services. 

"3. The commission shall take steps to inves
tigate the actual working conditions of male and ' 
female workers and their children in the colonies 

.and dependent territories, in order to determine 
how far the States responsible .for the adminis
tration' of such territories are fulfilling the 
obligations in this regard imposed on them by 
the Charter. 

"4. The commission shall be instructed to col
lect as complete and objective information as 
possible on the above-mentioned questions, and 
to make use for this purpose of m'aterial and 
data submitted by governmental institutions and 

-by trade union and other workers' organizations, 
including the organizations of ahy plant, factory, 
mine, agricultural plantation and the like. 

"5. On the basis of the information received, 
the- commission shall draw up reports and 
recommendations and submit them to the Eco
nomic and Social Council, and wide publicity 
shall be given to the results of the commission's 
wor~. 

"Considerant. les divergences ·qui existent entre 
les opinions exprimees au sujet des questions 
precitees, · 

"Agissant en vertu des pouvoirs fixes par les 
Articles 55 et 68 de Ia Charte, · 

"Decide: 
· "1. Afin de mettre en lumiere d'une fa<;on 

complete et objective les conditions reelles du 
travail des ouvriers et des employes dans les pays 
Ott regne Ia propriete capitaliste privee, ainsi' que 
dans l'URSS et dans les pays a democratie popu
laire, de creer une grande commission interna
tionale composee des representants des travailleurs 
manuels et intellectuels, groupes dans· toutes or
ganisations syndicales actuellement existantes, sans 
distinction de tendances politiques ou de con
victions religieuses chez leurs adherents, a savoir : 

· representants du Conseil central des syndicats 
ouvriers pour I' ensemble de l'U nion ( URS S), de 
l' American Federation of Labor ( Etats-U nis _ 
d'Amerique), du Congress of Industrial Organiza
tions (Etats-Unis d'Amerique), du British Trade
Unions Council (Royaume-Uni), des syndicats 
de France, des syrrdicats d'Italie, des syndicats de 
Chine, des syndicats d' Allemagne, des syndicats de 
J'Inde, des syndicats du J apon, et autres confedera
tions syndicales nationales, a raison d'un represen
tant pour un million de syndiques, soit au. total 
110 a 125 representants. Les confederations 
nationales du travail qui comptent mains d'un 
million de syndiques designeront leurs represen
tants en tablant sur Ia meme proportion, cela en se 
groupant par Etats de fa<;on appropriee. 

"Feront egalement partie de la commission 
les represeptants de,s groupements syndicaux in
ternationaux existant actuellement, a savoir: 
Federation syndicale mondiale, Confederation des 
travailleurs de I' Amerique Ia tine, Confederation 
internationale des syndicats chretiens et autres. 

"2. La commission devra s'attacher particuliere~ 
ment a !'etude de la situation des chomeurs com
plets et partiels dans tous les Etats ou le chomage 
n'a pas disparu, en ce qui concerne les conditions 
reelles de leur existence et.leur situation juridique, 
y compris les questions de logement et d'autres 
conditions d'existence, les assurances sociales et 
les soins medicaux. 

"3. La commission devra prendre des mestires 
pour·mettre en lumiere les conditions effectives du 
travail des ouvriers, des· ouvrieres et de leurs 

'enfants dans les colonies et dans les territoires 
non autonomes, pour etablir dans quelle mesure 
les Etats charges de !'administration de. ces terri
·toires remplissent les engagements correspondants 
souscrits par eux aux termes de Ia Charte des 
Nations U nies. 

"4. La commission sera chargee de recueillir 
les renseignements les plus complets et les plus 
objectifs sur les questions precitees, en utilisant 
a cet effet la documentation et les donnees des 
institutions gouvernementales, ainsi que celles des 
organisations syndicales et autres organisations 
.ouvrieres, y compris les organisations de toute 
fabrique, usine, mine, plantation agricole, etc. 

"5. Partant de la documentation re<;ue, Ia com-. 
mission devra elaborer et soumettre a l'examen du 
Conseil economique et social ses rapports et ses 
recommandations, le resultat des travaux de la 
commission-devant recevoir'la plus large publicite. 

347 



"In vww of the importance of the question, 

'~Resolves to submit this resolution to the 
General Assembly for ratification." 

· The PRESIDENT interrupted the representative 
of the USSR after he had read his draft reso
lution, to announce that weather conditions were 
so bad that he had been asked by the Secretary
General to adjourn the meeting so as to enable
members to return home. before dark. He ·sug-
gested that· the Council should complete discus
sion on. items 17 and 18 of the agenda at its 
next meeting, and that the (iiscussion on the 
forcecl _labour problem should be continued 
subsequently. 

The meeting rose at 4 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY-FIFTH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on. Tuesday, 1 March 1949, at 11 a.m. 

President: Mr. James THORN (New Zealand). 

60. Continuation of the discussion on 
the economic development of under· 
developed countries (E/1119) and 
technical as§istance · for economic 
-development (E/1174 and E/1191) 

Mr. MALIK (Lehanon) was glad to be able 
· to say that the Couricil appeared to be entering 

on an interesting and bold new phase. 

Members of the Council representing the least 
developed Gotmtries had always stressed the 
importance of developing t4e under-developed 
countries. As early as the San Francisco Con-

- ference, where the word "backward" was going 
to slip into the Charter as a description of cer

. tain territories, some representatives had pro
tested against the use of such· an epithet, which 
introduced a. derogatory and entirely irrelevant 
conception·. What should be said was simply 
that some territories were economically more or 
less developed than others and that the least 
developed''terrjtories were not doomed to remain 
so forever, but could be fully developed. 

The Lebanese Government welcomed the 
initiative the United States had just taken in the 
matter. For three years, the representatives of 

- the least developed countries had been proclaim
ing the need to develop their own regions, often 
in idt;ntical terms with those. used by the United 
States representative. · 

The Council would remember that the repre
sentative of China had made an important state
ment on the same question of "low pressure 
areas"1 in June 1946. Similarly; both in the 
Council and in the General Assembly, the Indian 
delegatiop had constantly and vigorously cham

-pioned the cause of the industrialisation of 
under-developed countries. The States of Latin 
America had constantly emphasized the impor
tance of developing the under-developed coun-

' See -Official- Records of the Economic and Social. 
Council, first year, second session, 7th meeting. 

"Considerant !'importance de Ia question, 

"Decide de _ soumettre Ia presente resolution a 
· !'approbation de_ 1' Assemblee generale." 

Le PRESIDENT interrompt le representant de 
l'URSS apres que ce dernier a donne lecture de 
son pro jet de resolution, pour annoncer que, en· 
_raison du tres mauvais temps, le Secretaire general 
lui a fait demander de lever Ia seance pour per
mettre aux representants de rentrer chez eux avant 
Ia nuit. II propose que le. Conseil acheve- au cours 

. de sa prochaine seance .Ia discussion des points 17 
et 18 de l'ordre du jour, et reprenne plus tard le 
debat sur le probleme du travail force. 

La seance est levee a 16 heures. 

DEUX.aCENT-CINQUANTE-CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le mardi 1er mars 1949, a 11 heures. 

President: M. James THORN ( N ouvelle-Zelande). 

60. Suite de Ia discussion stir Ie deve
loppement economique des pays 
insuffisamment developpes (E/ 
1119) et sur !'assistance technique 
en vue du developpement econo
mique (E/1174 et E/1191) 

M. MALIK (Liban) constate avec satisfaction· 
que le Conseil semble s'engager dans une voie nou-
velle et audacieuse. · 

. Le representant du Liban rappelle que ceux 
des membres du Conseil dont les pays sont les 
mains developpes economiquement ont toujours 
insiste sur !'importance de Ia mise en valeur des 
pays insuffisamment developpes. Des Ia Conference 
de San-Francisco, lorsque le terme "arrieres" allait 
se glisser dans Ia Charte pour designe~ certains 
territoires, quelques representants ont proteste 
contre l'emploi d'une -telle epithete, qui suggere 
une idee pejorative etrangere a Ia question. Ce 
qu'il faut dire, c'est tout simplement-que certains 
territoires sont plus ou moins developpes par 
rapport a d'autres, du point de vue economique; 
et ceux qui sont actuellement les mains developpes 
ne sont pas condamnes a demeurer eternellement -

'dans cet etat: ils pourront arriver. a un complet ~ 
developpemen t. 

Le Gouvernemen(du Liban accueille avec beau
coup de faveur !'initiative que viennent de prendre 
les Etats-Unis dans ce domaine. M. Malik rappelle 
que les Etats les mains developpes economiquement 
ont insiste depuis trois ans sur le fait qu'un plus 
grand developpement economique leur est neces
saire; ils l'ont dit, souvent, en des termes identiques 

_a ceux qu'employa le representant des Et~ts-Unis. 

En effet, le Conseil doit se souvenir que, en 
juin -1946, ·Ie representant de Ia Chine a fait une 
importante declaration sur cette meme question 
des "regions a basse pression1". De ineme, 1a. 
delegation de l'Inde s'est fait sans cesse, au Conseil 
.et a l'Assemblee generale, le champion energique 
de Ia cause de !'industrialisation des pays insuffi-

. ,samment developpes. .Les Etats de 1' Amerique 
,latine ont saris cesse insiste sur !'importance de Ia 
mise -en valeur 'des pays insuffisaniment develop-

' Voir les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil econo
mique et social, premiere annee, deuxieme session, 7eme 
seance. -

348 




